IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JERRY LEE SLOAN,
Petitioner,

SID J. VALLE

JUL 26 1985

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,
Respondent.

Case No. 67 42/

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, SECOND DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

BRIEF OF THE PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

JAMES MARION MOORMAN PUBLIC DEFENDER TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

D. P. CHANCO ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER

Hall of Justice Building 455 North Broadway Avenue Bartow, FL 33830 (813) 533-1184 or 533-0931

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER

TOPICAL

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A two-count information was filed by the State in Collier County Circuit Court December 22, 1983. Count I charged JERRY LEE SLOAN, Petitioner, with burglary of a structure; Count II charged him with grand theft. (R3)

A jury trial was held July 3, 1984, before the Honorable Charles Carlton, Circuit Judge. The jury returned guilty verdicts as to both counts. (R99-100)

The trial judge adjudicated Appellant guilty and sentenced him to 5 years imprisonment for each count to run concurrently, and allowed credit for time served. (R119-120)

Notice of Appeal was filed August 2, 1984. (R103)

The Public Defender was appointed to represent Petitioner at the district court level August 13, 1984. (R114) An amended Notice of Appeal was filed August 30, 1984.

The Second District Court of Appeal affirmed the trial count in an opinion issued June 7, 1985, Sloan v. State, Case No. 84-1718 (Fla.2d DCA June 7, 1985). A motion for rehearing was denied July 10, 1985. On July 22, 1985, Petitioner filed notice of his intent to seek discretionary review from this Honorable Court. This brief of jurisdiction follows.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Michael Grant testified for the State. He stated he knows Nicky Chandler and Jerry Sloan. (R131) On November 13, 1983, he was at Denise Perry's apartment with Nicky Chandler and Jerry Lee Sloan. (R132) At one point he testified they went to Norman Jewelers. (R133) He said he gave a crowbar to Sloan who used to to pry open the door of the jewelry store. (R135) Once inside the store, they took chains and watches. (R136) He testified the chains were hanging in State Exhibit 4. (R137)

When they returned to Denise's, they divided the jewelry among the three of them. (R138) He testified he negotiated a plea with the State and, as a condition, agreed to testify against Appellant. (R139) Objection was made by the defense as to impeaching ones own witness. Grant said he had also testified on May 3, 1984. (R141)

Arthur Norman testified for the State. He is co-owner of Norman Jewelers in Naples, Florida (R81), and was owner on November 13, 1983. (R82) On that date he was notified of a burglary at his store. He went to the store, found things scattered around and some items missing. (R83) Merchandise, which cost him around \$11,000 was missing. (R83)

Mr. Norman identified State's Exhibits 1,2, and 3 as items taken from his jewelry store. (R85) He identified State Exhibit 4. (R85)

Debra Perry testified as a State's witness. Michael Grant used to be her boyfriend. He, along with Sloan, were at her apartment November 13, 1983. (R109) Other people were also

present on that date. Sloan and Grant talked about robbing a store. They departed and when they returned, they had the jewelry with them. (R112)

She also said Michael Grant gave some watches and a neck-lace to her. (R113) She identified State Exhibits 1,2,and 3 as items given her by Grant. (R114) Later he beat her up and she went to the police. (R114)

Steven Moore testified for the Sate. He is a patrolman for the Naples Police Department. (R124) He received a dispatch to Norman Jewelers November 13, 1983. (R124) He collected some items of evidence, including State's Exhibit 4 and turned them over to Crime Technicial Conley. (R127)

Ronald Mosher, a police officer who came into contact with Appellant on December 3, 1983, testified. (R129) He read Appellant hsi Miranda rights, and Appellant stated he knew Michael Grant by sight and Nicky Chandler by name. (R132) He took Appellant's fingerprints and identified them as Exhibit 11. (R134) They were admitted into evidence without objection. (R135)

Lamar Conley also testified for the State. He was accepted as an expert witness for fingerprint analysis and comparison. (R140) He went to Norman Jewelers on November 13, 1984 (R140), and photographed the scene and lifted some latent fingerprints. He identified State Exhibits 12 - 15. (R141) He developed fingerprints from State Exhibits 4 and 5 (R144), and compared Appellant prints with latent prints from State Exhibits 16 - 19. (R149) In his opinion those prints were Jerry Lee Sloan's. (R150) Exhibits 11, and 16 - 19 were admitted into evidence without objection. (R151)

Exhibits 1,2,3,4 and 5 were admitted over objection. (R165)

A motion for judgment of acquittal was made and denied by the court.

Jerry Lee Sloan testified on his own behalf. (R167) He has been in several jewelry stores in Naples. (R168) He has browsed in jewelry stores in Naples. (R169) He said he did not break into Norman Jewelers.

The sentencing guidelines scoresheet is in the record at R124. Written reasons for exceeding the guidelines were set out by the trial judge at Record 127-128.

ARGUMENT SUMMARY

The Second District Court of Appeal in the instant case ruled that existence of two valid and two invalid reasons to deviate from the sentencing guidelines constituted a basis to affirm Petitioner's sentence. The First and Fourth District Courts of Appeal have ruled differently. (The question has also been certified to the Supreme Court.) $\frac{1}{}$ It was also ruled by the Second District Court of Appeal that the actions of the State in questioning its own witness did not constitute impeachment and was not error. An alternative decision was rendered as to that point by the Fourth District Court in Ryan v. State, 457 So.2d 1084 (Fla.4th DCA 1984).

<u>Young v. State</u>, 455 So.2d 551 (Fla.1st DCA 1984).

ARGUMENT

ISSUE

THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE INSTANT CASE IS IN DIRECT AND EXPRESS CONFLICT WITH DECISIONS OF THE FIRST AND FOURTH DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL THEREBY VESTING THIS HONORABLE COURT WITH DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION.

The decision of the Second District Court of Appeal in the instant case conflicts with decision in Young v. State, 455 So.2d 551 (Fla.1st DCA 1984); Davis v. State, 458 So.2d 42 (Fla.4th DCA 1984); Ryan v. State, 457 So.2d 1084 (Fla.4th DCA 1984), and Price v. State, Case No. 84-483 (Fla.5th DCA May 23, 1985).

It was Petitioner's position that it was error for the trial judge to have exceeded the presumptive sentence in imposing sentence, that no valid reason to exceed the guidelines existed, and it was error to allow the State to impeach its own witness.

The Second District Court of Appeal ruled that some of the reasons for departure from the presumptive sentence, calculated pursuant to the guidelines, were invalid, some valid. It also ruled that the State's questioning of one of its witnesses was not improper and did not constitute impeachment.

In <u>Young v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>, the First District Court of Appeal found some reasons to exceed the presumptive sentence invalid one valid, and reversed and remanded certifying the question. In <u>Davis v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>, the Fourth District Court of Appeal ruled that when there are both acceptable and unacceptable reasons for departure from the guidelines sentence it is more equitable to reverse and remand for resentencing than to affirm.

In <u>Ryan v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>, the Fourth District Court ruled the State's tactic of asking one of its witnesses about prior inconsistent statements was impeachment and error. In <u>Bell v. State</u>, Case No. 84-1616 (Fla.2d DCA, opinion on rehearing issued July 19, 1985), this issue was certified to be in conflict with <u>Price v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>.

The decision of the Second District Court of Appeal in the instant case is in direct, specific conflict with the decisions of the other districts as referred to above in regard to the sentencing guidelines issue and impeachment issue. This Honorable Court has jurisdiction to review the matter. Art.V, §3(b)(1), Fla. Const.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons and authorities Petitioner respectfully requests this Honorable Court accept discretionary jurisdiction.