JERRY LEE SLOAN,

τ.,

Petitioner,

CASE NO. 67,421

015

STATE OF FLORIDA,

v.

Respondent.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE AUG 10 1000 DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL SECOND DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

### BRIEF OF THE RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

JIM SMITH ATTORNEY GENERAL

JAMES A. YOUNG Assistant Attorney General 1313 Tampa Street, Suite 804 Park Trammell Building Tampa, Florida 33602 (813) 272-2670

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

JAY/ech

#

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

In reference to this section of the brief, Respondent herein adopts and incorporates the statement of the case and of the facts as set forth in Petitioner's brief.

4 x ,

# SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Second District Court of Appeal in the instant case ruled that the State could, on direct examination in its case in chief, properly elicit from its own witness a prior inconsistent statement and an explanation thereof in order to bolster the credibility of the witness before it is attacked by defense counsel on cross-examination. This decision is in direct conflict with the decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in <u>Price v. State</u>, No. 84-483 (Fla. 5th DCA May 23, 1985)[10 F.L.W. 1292], holding to the contrary.

The Second District Court of Appeal also ruled in the instant case that of the four reasons stated by the trial court for departing from the sentencing guidelines, the two valid reasons stated were adequate to affirm the sentence imposed upon petitioner. This ruling is not in direct and express conflict with decisions of the First and Fourth District Courts of Appeal in which those courts, due to the proliferation of invalid reasons, were unable to determine that the trial court's sentence would have been the same if based only upon the valid reasons for departure. The cases reaching a different result are thus distinguishable on the facts and no conflict exists with respect to this issue.

The State therefore asserts that this Honorable Court should grant review of this case for the purpose of resolving conflict on the sole issue with regard to which conflict exists.

-2-

#### ARGUMENT

. .

#### ISSUE

WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE INSTANT CASE IS IN DIRECT CONFLICT WITH DECISIONS OF OTHER DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL THEREBY VESTING THIS HONORABLE COURT WITH DISCRE-TIONARY JURISDICTION.

Petitioner asserts that the opinion of the Second District Court of Appeal in the instant case is in conflict with decisions of the other District Courts of Appeal on two issues.

The State acknowledges that the Second District Court of Appeal on motion for rehearing in <u>Bell v. State</u>, No. 84-1616 (Fla. 2d DCA, July 19, 1985) certified to this Honorable Court that its decision was in direct conflict with the decision of the Fifth District in <u>Price v. State</u>, No. 84-483 (Fla. 5th DCA, May 23, 1985)[10 F.L.W. 1292]. The court's decision in the instant case was based on its ruling in <u>Bell v. State</u>, No. 84-1616 (Fla. 2d DCA, June 7, 1985)[10 F.L.W. 1396] and was rendered on June 7, 1985 prior to the rehearing in <u>Bell</u> and without the benefit of the Price decision before it.

In <u>Bell</u> and in the instant case the Second District Court of Appeal held that the State could properly attempt to bolster the credibility of its witness by having the witness on direct examination testify to his prior inconsistent statements and then explain the inconsistencies before defense counsel could attack his credibility on cross-examination. <u>Bell</u>, 10 F.L.W. at 1397; <u>Sloan v. State</u>, No. 84-1718 (Fla. 2d DCA, June 7, 1985)[10 F.L.W. 1402, 1402]. The Fifth District

-3-

in <u>Price</u> rejected the States position and held that the State, in its case in chief, could not properly elicit from its own witness a prior inconsistent statement and then rehabilitate the witness by having him explain the inconsistency. 10 F.L.W. at 1292.

In view of the conflict that has arisen between the Second and Fifth Districts on this issue of "anticipatory rehabilitation", the State joins Petitioner in respectfully requesting review of this matter by this Honorable Court pursuant to its jurisdiction under Art. V, §3(b)(1), of the Florida Constitution.

The State however, respectfully requests also that this Court limit its review to the above issue with regard to which a conflict exists. Petitioner also seeks review on the ground that conflict exists between the District Courts on the issue of whether the appellate courts must reverse and remand for resentencing cases in which the trial court cites both valid and invalid reasons for departing from the sentencing guidelines.

The decision of the Second District Court of Appeal in the instant case is not in conflict on this issue with the decisions of its sister courts in <u>Young v. State</u>, 455 So.2d 551 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984) and <u>Davis v. State</u>, 458 So.2d 42 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984).

In <u>Young</u> the First District Court of Appeal found that of the trial judges three written reasons for departure (plus two others stated orally during sentencing), "all but one were

- 4 -

either impermissibly considered or not clear and convincing, or both." 455 So.2d at 552. The court found support in the record for the remaining reason but concluded:

> [W]hen this reason is mired in the confusion revealed by this record, it is impossible to determine whether the trial judge would have come to the same conclusion on this reason alone. <u>Id</u>.

Because of the court's inability to determine whether the trial judge would have imposed the same sentence based only upon the permissible stated ground for departure, the case was reversed and remanded to the trial court for resentencing. <u>Id</u>. The Court also certified to this Honorable Court the following question:

> WHEN AN APPELLATE COURT FINDS THAT A SENTENCING COURT RELIED UPON A REASON OR REASONS THAT ARE IMPERMISSIBLE UNDER FLA.R.CR.P. 3.701 IN MAKING ITS DECISION TO DEPART FROM THE SENTENCING GUIDELINES, SHOULD THE APPELLATE COURT EXAMINE THE OTHER REASONS GIVEN BY THE SENTENCING COURT TO DETERMINE IF THOSE REASONS JUSTIFY DEPARTURE FROM THE GUIDELINES OR SHOULD THE CASE BE RE-MANDED FOR A RESENTENCING.

> > 455 So.2d at 552.

Although the opinion in <u>Young</u> does not expressly purport to adopt a per se rule of reversal in every case in which both permissible and impermissible reasons for departure are stated by the trial court, the substance of the question certified gives rise to that implication. Recognizing the possibility that its decision in <u>Young</u> might be misconstrued, as it apparently has been by Petitioner in the instant case, the First District Court of Appeal clarified its position in

-5-

<u>Carney v. State</u>, 458 So.2d 13 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984). The court, again faced with an inability to determine whether under the circumstances elimination of the impermissible grounds for departure would have no effect on the trial court's sentencing decision, found it necessary to reverse the trial court and remand the case for resentencing. 458 So.2d at 17. However, the court further stated:

> Because of the similarities between this case and Young, we address one additional Judge Nimmons, in his dissenting issue. opinion in Young, in disagreeing with the result reached in that case, has articulated many of the reasons for declining to adopt a per se rule requiring reversal of sentences departing from the guidelines if one or more impermissible reasons are commingled with permissible ones. We will refrain from repetition of those reasons. We observe, however, that we agree with the views expressed by Judge Nimmons for the most part, and would recede from Young to the extent that it appears to adopt, at least by implication, a per se rule of reversal in every instance in which permissible and impermissible reasons for departure are stated by the trial judge.

We think a more appropriate ruleone which would allow greater flexibility to the trial court, but still perserve the substantial rights of the accused to have meaningful appellate review of a sentence outside the guidelines ---- would be to affirm the trial court's sentencing departure where impermissible as well as permissible reasons for departure are stated, where the reviewing court finds that the trial court's decision to depart from the guidelines, or the severity of the sentence imposed outside the guidelines, would not have been affected by elimination of the impermissible (footnote omitted) reasons or factors stated.

458 So.2d at 17.

The court again certified to the Florida Supreme Court as a matter of great public importance the same question certified in Young.

Even more recently in <u>Scurry v. State</u>, No. AW-442 (Fla. 1st DCA, June 27, 1985)[10 F.L.W. 1614], the First District Court of Appeal examined 13 reasons listed by the trial court for sentencing the defendant to 30 years imprisonment, well in excess of the recommended 12-17 years. The court concluded that since the majority of reasons given for departure were valid, clear and convincing, the trial court's reliance on impermissible reasons constitutes harmless error. Again the same question as in <u>Young</u> and <u>Carney</u> was certified to this court.

It is clear that the position of the First District Court of Appeal does not advocate per se reversal of cases in which both permissible and impermissible reasons for departure are stated by the trial judge.

The position of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in <u>Davis v. State</u>, 458 So.2d 42 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984) is in accord with the reasoning in <u>Carney</u>. The <u>Davis</u> court states:

> [W]e agree with <u>Higgs v. State</u>, 455 So.2d 451 (Fla. 5th DCA 1984), that if there are some acceptable clear and convincing reasons for aggravation, unacceptable ones are surplusage. Nonetheless, we must speculate that the profusion of unacceptable reasons in this case may have affected the extent of the departure. (Some emphasis added)

> > 458 So.2d at 45.

-7-

Accordingly the court reversed and remanded the case for resentencing.

These cases are not in conflict with the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal in the instant case. Here the Second District examined the four reasons stated by the trial court for departure from the sentencing guidelines, and concluded that the two permissible reasons stated were adequate to affirm the sentence imposed upon the appellant. 10 F.L.W. at 1402.

As authority for its position the court cites <u>Williard v.</u> State, 462 So.2d 102 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985). In <u>Williard</u> the court's analysis was the same as that adopted by the First and Fourth District Courts of Appeal in <u>Carney</u> and <u>Davis</u> respectively. Indeed the Second District relied upon <u>Davis</u> in its opinion:

> this [impermissible] factor appears to have been only one of several other clear and convincing reasons for exceeding the guidelines. A departure from the guidelines should not be reversed simply because one of the reasons for the departure was invalid if other valid reasons exist. See <u>Davis</u> <u>v. State</u>, ...and <u>Higgs v. State</u>, (citations omitted).

462 So.2d at 104. Accord, Brinson v. State, 463 So.2d 564 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985)(question certified).

It is clear from a careful reading of the cases cited herein that the approach taken and the law applied by the Second District Court of Appeal in the instant case is entirely consistent with that of the First District Court of Appeal in <u>Young</u> as later clarified by <u>Carney</u> and that of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in Davis, despite con-

-8-

flicting results. As discussed above, the results reached in <u>Young</u>, <u>Carney</u> and <u>Davis</u> were based on the appellate courts' inability in each of those cases to determine whether the trial judge would have come to the same conclusion based upon the one or two permissible reasons stated for departure where the majority of reasons stated were either impermissible or not clear and convincing. The Second District in <u>Sloan</u> was able to reach a different conclusion under the same analysis where it was able to determine the adequacy of the permissible reasons stated to support the sentence imposed. Accordingly there is not conflict between these cases.

The State therefore respectfully requests that review be limited to the sole issue with regard to which conflict exists, to wit: whether the state may attempt to bolster the credibility of its own witnesses by eliciting from the witness on direct examination testimony of prior inconsistent statements along with an explanation therefor.

#### CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing argument and citations of authority, the Respondent respectfully requests that this Honorable Court grant review of this case for the purpose of resolving conflict on the sole issue discussed herein with regard to which conflict has been shown to exist.